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2024 1 31

2024 31 2023 31
2.2 5 83,017,463 13,012,157 97,086,956 15,217,409
2.1 1,855,211 290,786 3,507,393 549,749
93,427 14,644 58,381 9,151
84,966,101 13,317,587 100,652,730 15,776,309
2.10 3 179,020 28,060 348,897 54,686
8.2E 118,256 18,535 80,681 12,646
8.1C 28,389 4,450 35,449 5,556
8.1E 17,251 2,704 36,868 5,779
8.1B 15,209 2,384 5,309 832
8.1A 10,285 1,612 11,570 1,813
8.1D 8,991 1,409 3,655 573
8.2B 6,813 1,068 8,507 1,333
8.2A 2,765 433 1,382 217
8.2D 513 80 708 111
387,492 60,735 533,026 83,546
84,578,609 13,256,851 100,119,704 15,692,762
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2024 1 31
2024 1 31 2023 1 31
FVTPL (€))
2.7 2.11 126,118 19,768 53,326 8,358
)11 7 907,226 142,199 84,321 13,216
2.9 2.11 7 5,211,681 816,879 (2,945,452) (461,670)
2.11 7 - - 168 26
6,245,025 978,845 (2,807,637) (440,069)
8.1C 463,831 72,701 666,186 104,418
8.2E 185,533 29,080 266,474 41,767
8.2B 111,319 17,448 159,885 25,060
8.1A 55,660 8,724 79,943 12,530
8.18B 37,223 5,834 37,221 5,834
8.1D 24,437 3,830 24,434 3,830
8.1E 20,998 3,291 21,000 3,292
8.2D 9,277 1,454 13,324 2,088
7,187 1,126 7,187 1,126
8.2A 1,383 217 1,382 217
- - 48,215 7,557
916,848 143,707 1,325,251 207,720
5,328,177 835,138 (4,132,888) (647,789)
5,328,177 835,138 (4,132,888) (647,789)
[€)) FVTPL
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2022 1 31 178,488,739 27,976,325
3 999,651 156,685
2.8 3 (75,235,798) (11,792,459)
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2023 1 31 100,119,704 15,692,762
3 180,940 28,361
2.8 3 (21,050,212) (3,299,410)
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2024 1 31 84,578,609 13,256,851
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5,328,177 835,138 (4,132,888) (647,789)
20,188,400 3,164,330 72,687,632 11,393,059
(907,226) (142,199) (84,321) (13,216)
(5,211,681) (816,879) 2,945,452 461,670
(35,046) (5,493) 29,440 4,614
(€Y} 24,343 3,816 (96,272) (15,090)
19,386,967 3,038,713 71,349,043 11,183,249
180,940 28,361 1,412,991 221,472
(21,220,089) (3,326,037) (75,536,867) (11,839,649)
(21,039,149) (3,297,676) (74,123,876) (11,618,176)
(1,652,182) (258,963) (2,774,833) (434,927)
2.1 3,507,393 549,749 6,282,226 984,676
2.1 1,855,211 290,786 3,507,393 549,749
126,118 19,768 53,326 8,358
@
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2024 1 31
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Insight Alpha
Statement of Financial Position
January 31, 2024
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 83,017,463 $ 97,086,956
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 1,855,211 3,507,393
Prepaid fees 93,427 58,381
Total assets 84,966,101 100,652,730
Liabilities
Payables for:
Units repurchased (Note 2.10, 3) 179,020 348,897
Investment management fees (Note 8.2E) 118,256 80,681
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 28,389 35,449
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 17,251 36,868
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 15,209 5,309
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 10,285 11,570
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 8,991 3,655
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B) 6,813 8,507
Trustee fees (Note 8.2A) 2,765 1,382
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2D) 513 708
Liabilities (excluding equity) 387,492 533,026
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of units) $ 84,578,609 $ 100,119,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Insight Alpha
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FvTPL(1)
Interest income (Note 2.7, 2.11) $ 126,118 $ 53,326

Net realized gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Note 2.11, 7) 907,226 84,321
ot vale through profit or loss (lote 2.5, 210, 7y 1 5,211,681 (2,945, 452)
Net realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.11, 7) - 168
Total income/(loss) 6,245,025 (2,807,637)
Expenses
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 463,831 666,186
Investment management fees (Note 8.2E) 185,533 266,474
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B) 111,319 159,885
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 55,660 79,943
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 37,223 37,221
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 24,437 24,434
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 20,998 21,000
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2D) 9,277 13,324
Printing fees 7,187 7,187
Trustee fees (Note 8.2A) 1,383 1,382
Organization expenses - 48,215
Total expenses 916,848 1,325,251
Operating profit/(loss) before finance costs 5,328,177 (4,132,888)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net assets $ 5,328,177 $ (4,132,888)

attributable to the holder of units from operations)

(D This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (““FVTPL>”) including
interest income and unrealized gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Insight Alpha

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended January 31, 2024
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At January 31, 2022 $ 178,488,739
Issue of units (Note 3) 999,651
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (75,235,798)

Total comprehensive loss (being decrease in net assets attributable to the holder of

units from operations) (4,132,888)

At January 31, 2023 $ 100,119,704
Issue of units (Note 3) 180,940
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (21,050,212)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable to the holder of

- . 5,328,177
units from operations)
At January 31, 2024 $ 84,578,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations)

Adjustments to reconcile total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations) to cash provided by operating
activities:

Proceeds from disposition of financial assets at fair value through profitor
loss
Net realized gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net change in unrealized (appreciation)/depreciation on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid fees
Increase/(decrease) in other payables(1)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units issued
Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Note 2.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2._1)

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received

January 31, 2024

January 31, 2023

5,328,177  $ (4,132,888)
20,188,400 72,687,632
(907,226) (84,321)
(5,211,681) 2,945,452
(35,046) 29,440
24,343 (96,272)
19,386,967 71,349,043
180,940 1,412,991

(21,220,089)

(75,536,867)

(21,039,149)

(74,123,876)

(1,652,182)

(2,774,833)

3,507,393 6,282,226
1,855,211 $ 3,507,393
126,118 $ 53,326

(D other payables comprise of investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, administrator
fees, agent member company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and trustee fees.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Insight Alpha

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended January 31, 2024
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

Insight Alpha (the ““Series Trust””) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (formerly Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11) (the ““Trust””), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master
Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a
Supplemental Trust Deed dated December 24, 2020 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the ““Trustee’”),
a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on
February 19, 2021.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trust Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered
under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (““CSC””) announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust Group of which
the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

The manager of the Series Trust is UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)
Limited) (the ““Manager””).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the
““Administrator®”, ““Custodian”” and ““Transfer Agent’”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the ““Fee Agent””).
Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the ““Agent Member Company””).
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Pictet Asset Management (Japan) Ltd. (the ““Investment Manager<“).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the ““Distributor®”) of
the units in Japan.

The Series Trust is denominated in U.S. Dollars (““USD”” or ““$””) and units are denominated in USD.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to invest indirectly mainly in equities and equity related
securities in any country (including emerging countries) in any economic sector and in any currency implemented
by following a set of long/short investment strategies. The Series Trust aims to achieve long-term capital growth
in absolute terms with a strong focus on capital preservation. The Series Trust seeks to achieve its investment
objective by investing substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust into the HJ USD Share Class of Pictet
TR - Atlas (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a compartment of, with a separate pool of assets and liabilities within, Pictet TR, an open-

ended investment company (SICAV) incorporated under Luxembourg law and classified as an undertaking for
collective investment in transferable securities (““UCITS””).
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Insight Alpha
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The primary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth in absolute terms
with a strong focus on capital preservation by following a set of long/short investment strategies. Traditional
long positions are coupled with (synthetic) long and short positions, which will be achieved through the use of
financial derivative instruments. The Selected Fund will mainly invest in equities, equity related securities
(such as but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares), deposits and money market instruments. The Selected
Fund may invest in any country (including emerging countries), in any economic sector and in any currency.
However, depending on market conditions, the investments or exposure may be focused on one country or on a
limited number of countries and/or one economic activity sector and/or one currency and/or in a single asset
class. The Selected Fund diversifies investment in undervalued stocks (long positions) and overvalued stocks
(short positions) with focusing on the mispriced stock prices mainly from a wide range of global stock markets.
The Selected Fund carries out stock selection and determines investment allocation based on detailed top-down
analysis (macro analysis) and bottom-up fundamental analysis (individual stock analysis). The Selected Fund aims
to maximize risk-adjusted returns by combining stock selection and active market exposure management in building
a portfolio of the Selected Fund. The Selected Fund also aims to achieve a stable return whilst minimizing the
impact of equity markets by changing long/short investment allocations actively on a region, country or industry
basis.

Pictet Asset Management S.A. and Pictet Asset Management Ltd, which have substantial expertise in managing equity
instruments, are acting as managers of the Selected Fund (the "SF Investment Managers').

The Investment Manager shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility
over the portion of the Series Trust®s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash, JPY cash, and money
market securities (the "Portfolio™).

At January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 the Series Trust held 3.6% and 3.3% of the Selected Fund"s net assets,
respectively.

Currently the Selected Fund has fifteen Classes of units — I EUR Class Units, 1 GBP Class Units, P EUR Class
Units, HI CHF Class Units, HI GBP Class Units, HI JPY Class Units, HI USD Class Units, HJ USD Class Units, HJ JPY
Class Units, HP CHF Class Units, HP USD Class Units, HR USD Class Units, HZX CHF Class Units, HZX GBP Class Units
and ZX EUR Class Units. The Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selected Fund's
participating shares in the HJ USD Class (denominated in USD). The Selected Fund allows repurchases of these
shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the fair value of the
Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day
The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day

following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the ““Final Repurchase Day””), unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.
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Insight Alpha

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(O) the net asset value on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter
the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving notice to all
unitholders; or

(i) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each a
"Compulsory Repurchase Event').

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at the
final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its
sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 37 as the Net Asset Value per unit on
the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day).
Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or
such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder
is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final
Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day
is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) (the ““Repurchase Price””). There is no
repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS””) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit Suisse””) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG completed the acquisition of Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse International.
The financial statements were authorized for issue on May 28, 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards ("IFRS").

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process
of applying the Series Trust"s accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS Accounting

Standard 12 and IAS Accounting Standard 27) (2012) (the Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust
meets the definition of an investment entity.
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Insight Alpha
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS Accounting Standard 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). The classification of financial assets under IFRS Accounting Standard 9 is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and,
ii) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments

of principal and interest (SPPI).
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows,
or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii)At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,

the Series Trust considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension features;

terms that limit the Series Trust"s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse

features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest

rates).
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Insight Alpha
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and prepaid fees. These
financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (investment
in the Selected Fund). These financial assets are managed, and their performance is evaluated, on a
fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series
Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes
whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust"s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust"s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for investment management fees, distribution
fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent member company fees, custody fees and transfer
agent fees.

Impairment of financial assets

The <expected credit loss™ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust"s
financial assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply
to such instruments.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit
quality and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that is effective for the financial year ended January 1, 2024:
Changes in material accounting policies

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Accounting Standard
Practice Statement 2) from February 1, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the
accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial
statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of "material® rather than "significant® accounting policies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities
to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information
in the financial statements.

There were no subsequent changes to the adopted accounting policy information during the year ended January 31,
2024.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended January 31, 2024:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after February
1, 2023 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or
amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series
Trust's financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

At January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash
equivalents:

2024 2023
Cash $ 11,016 $ 9,941
Time deposit 1,844,195 3,497,452
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position $ 1,855,211 $ 3,507,393
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2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

January 31, 2024 January 31, 2024
- Fair Value - Cost
Investment in Selected Fund $ 83,017,463  $ 76,598,587
January 31, 2023 January 31, 2023
- Fair Value - Cost
Investment in Selected Fund $ 97,086,956 $ 95,879,761

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents and prepaid fees.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: investment management fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees,
administrator fees, agent member company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and trustee fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with
transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the "financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss® category are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period inwhich they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method. Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair
value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment
losses, ifany. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate nature of these
instruments.
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(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for
which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance
with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or losses are
reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Investment in the Selected Fund

Inprinciple, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The HJ USD Share
Class of the Selected Fund, into which the Series Trust will invest, is denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not
invest in non-USD denominated assets (other than JPY cash).

The Series Trust”s investment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund®s offering
documentation. The Series Trust records its investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the Selected
Fund®s Net Asset Value per share, as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the
details of the reported information obtained from the Selected Fund®s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of
the Selected Fund, or its underlying investments, (ii) the value date of the Net Asset Value per share provided, (iii) any
restrictions on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its
assets in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally
based on net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust"s
investment in the Selected Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might
ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be denominated until the
Selected Fund®s underlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected
Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund"s investments.

The Series Trust”s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business day. The
Series Trust may at any time request the repurchase of its units at the applicable net asset value of such units.

2_3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when
there is a legal ly enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, all financial
assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and
therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.
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2_4 Receivables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts are recognized
initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for
securities sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not
be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee considers the
U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented inU.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust"s

functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U_S. Dollars amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. Dollars amounts on the respective dates of such
transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions
The current distribution policy of the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders. Consequently, all the
Series Trust”s net income and realized capital gainswill be reinvested and reflected in the Net Asset Value of the Series

Trust.

There were no distributions declared and paid during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023.
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2_8 Repurchases of Units
The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with I1AS 32 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Presentation’ .

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
as equity where certain strict criteriaare met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;
The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on
the issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantial ly on the profit
or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust”s units have been classified as equity at January 31, 2024 and January 31,
2023.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust"s total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust”s total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust”"s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder*s option and
entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust"s net assets. The Series Trust holds shares in
the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust"s maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the total fair value of its
investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust
ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has
not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.
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2_10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date.

2._11 Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gains or losses on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss and interest income. Net realized gain or loss from financial
instruments at FVTPL is calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlement price of
the sale trade. Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the
transaction price if itwas purchased in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period. Refer to Note 7 for further details.

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial assets and liabilities
at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it fromall local income, profits and
capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains. Such
income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes
would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the
years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023.

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the
Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such
taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund®s broker on a "withholding® basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust"s capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is
sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates
uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any
uncertain tax liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.
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As at January 31, 2024, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for any
unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager"s best estimate
there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the
Series Trust.

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, inwhich it holds an interest but does
not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:

the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only;

the entities” activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and
these entities have a narrow and wel I-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are disclosed in Note 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust by the
total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series
Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid inU.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription application.
The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in U.S. Dol lars.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made inU.S. Dollars.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units onor prior to 5:30 p.m. (Japan
time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications are
irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of January 31, 2024 were as fol lows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

USD Class Units $ 84,578,609 805,660 $ 104.9805
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of January 31, 2023 were as fol lows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

USD Class Units $ 100,119,704 1,011,245  $ 99.01

As of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of interest in the
net assets.

Aunitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
entered into the Series Trust"s register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or a
portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be
submitted inunits. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register
of unitholders, then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase
notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit being
repurchased.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be made in
kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made
by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as a unitholder
may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such unitholder. No such
repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

During the year ended January 31, 2024, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as fol lows:

Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units
Classes of units issued repurchased

USD Class Units $ 180,940 $ (21,050,212)

During the year ended January 31, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as fol lows:

Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units
Classes of units issued repurchased

USD Class Units $ 999,651 $ (75,235,798)
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During the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were
as follows:

At At
Classes of units January 31, 2023 Units issued Units repurchased January 31, 2024
USD Class Units 1,011,245 1,769 (207,354) 805,660
At At
Classes of units January 31, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased January 31, 2023
USD Class Units 1,764,498 10,077 (763,330) 1,011,245

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances where
the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as
soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn
during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to
determine fair values, they are validated and periodical ly reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s activities expose it to
avariety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be material ly affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. For example,
if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected Fund
and, inturn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns.
Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased
portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain
instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an
adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.
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(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other assets and liabilities held
by the Series Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has little currency
risk exposure and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency rates. At
January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, the Series Trust was not exposed to direct currency risk.

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value
of the Series Trust"s portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust"s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a security denominated in
that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s
functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another
currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
returns to investors while aweak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates may
fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its returns. Certain positions taken by
the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently
uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in attempting to predict
relative price fluctuations.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term securities generally change more in response to interest rate
changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-termor long-term interest rates
rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate,
the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The
bigger the security”s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in
interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less than
three months and indirectly the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund"s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be sensitive to changes in

prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund®s asset yield and borrowing rates and
consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.
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Amajor change in interest rates or a significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund*s (and indirectly, the
Trust"s) investments, or other market event, could cause the value of the investments of the Selected Fund"s investors
(and indirectly the unitholders® investments in the Series Trust), or itsyield, todecline. Interest bearing assets held
by the Selected Fund and the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less than three
months. As a result, the Series Trust is not subject to any significant risk or direct significant exposures to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

At January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other
variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase
in net assets attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $9,221 and
$17,487, respectively, assuming that the cash positionwill be held for one year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down,
sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally
or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market
conditions which are not specifical ly related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporate
earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which
affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive
conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in
value simultaneously. Equity securities general ly have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 would have
increased the total equity by $830,175 and $970,870, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an
equal but opposite effect.

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States at January 31, 2024 and Luxembourg
at January 31, 2023.

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer”s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuer”s creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trust”s investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with instruments that
may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased credit risk may prevent the Selected Fund®s investment objective and
consequently the Series Trust"s investment objective from being achieved. All transactions in listed securities held by
the Selected Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as
delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.
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The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust"s credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2023, is the carrying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series
Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investments, exposed
to credit risk held by the Selected Fund, are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

(O) LiquidityRisk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust"s investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust"s principal investment strategies involve derivatives
or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure to
liquidity risk.

The table below analyzes the Series Trust"s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At January 31, 2024 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Units repurchased $ 179,020 $ - $ 179,020
Investment management fees 118,256 - 118,256
Distribution fees 28,389 - 28,389
Professional fees 17,251 - 17,251
Custody fees 15,209 - 15,209
Administrator fees 10,285 - 10,285
Transfer agent fees 8,991 - 8,991
Fee agent fees 6,813 - 6,813
Trustee fees 2,765 - 2,765
Agent member company fees 513 - 513

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 387,492 $ - $ 387,492

At January 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Units repurchased $ 348,897 $ - $ 348,897
Investment management fees 80,681 - 80,681
Professional fees 36,868 - 36,868
Distribution fees 35,449 - 35,449
Administrator fees 11,570 - 11,570
Fee agent fees 8,507 - 8,507
Custody fees 5,309 - 5,309
Transfer agent fees 3,655 - 3,655
Trustee fees 1,382 - 1,382
Agent member company fees 708 - 708

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 533,026 $ - $ 533,026
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Manager monitors the Series Trust"s liquidity position on an on-going basis.
Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

There were no Series Trust™s derivative financial instruments at January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, with gross
settlement.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with unitholder
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund"s Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include liquid
investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could
require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the
repurchases. The redemption price for Selected Fund"s shares is equal to the Net Asset Value of each share, calculated on a
forward pricing basis at the relevant valuation day. A commission paid to financial intermediaries and/or distributors
may be deducted from this amount, representing up to 3.00% of the Net Asset Value per share. The redemption pricewill also
be reduced to cover any duties, taxes and stamp duties to be paid. The management of Selected Fund is authorized to apply
corrections of the Net Asset Value for swing pricing and/or charge a dilution levy on the redemption price, representing up
to 2.00% of the Net Asset Value per share. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased,
valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid
assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31,
2023.

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust"s Investment Manager™s team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals, which
provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust
is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust®s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust"s policy
is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust"s entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent, causing
the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United
States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out
transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of
securities, itmay miss attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested
with no return earned thereon for some period.

IT the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series
Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to
another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust"s investments or to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s
returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly and efficiently than
other types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

Credit Risk— the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a
derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

Leverage Risk— the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that
relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain
investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.

Liquidity Risk— the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging is a
strategy inwhich the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust"s holdings. While
hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a manner different
from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge. Hedging also
involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the holdings being hedged as expected
by the Manager, inwhich case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no
assurance that the Series Trust"s hedging strategy will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or
cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the
Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to
the risks outlined above to a greater extent than if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of
derivatives to seek to enhance returns is considered speculative.

As of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative liabilities
subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material
losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge col lateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No col lateral was pledged by the Manager during the years ended
January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in units does
not give a unitholder adirect interest in the Selected Fund.

(G) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase Day will be
brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standard 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market price for

its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended January 31, 2024
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency
swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm®s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantial ly the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are

usual ly based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs
to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is
always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed
may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. IT a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable® requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under advisement
of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of January 31, 2024 in valuing the Series
Trust"s financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Observable Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for ldentical Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) January 31, 2024
Investment in the Selected Fund
HJ USD Share Class of Pictet TR -
Atlas $ - % 83,017,463 $ - 3 83,017,463
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 83,017,463 $ - $ 83,017,463

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of January 31, 2023 in valuing the Series
Trust"s financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Observable Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for ldentical Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) January 31, 2023
Investment in the Selected Fund
HJ USD Share Class of Pictet TR -
Atlas $ - % 97,086,956 $ - $ 97,086,956
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 97,086,956 $ - $ 97,086,956

During the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include over-the-counter derivatives and equity securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on avai lable market information.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) AtJanuary 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities
(including prepaid fees and payables for investment management fees, fee agent fees, professional fees,
distribution fees, administrator fees, agent member company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and trustee
fees) are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value
because of their short-termnature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.
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5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

The primary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth in absolute terms with a
strong focus on capital preservation by fol lowing a set of long/short investment strategies. Traditional long positions
are coupled with (synthetic) long and short positions, whichwill be achieved through the use of financial derivative
instruments. The Selected Fund will mainly invest in equities, equity related securities (such as but not limited to
ordinary or preferred shares), deposits and money market instruments. The Selected Fund may invest in any country
(including emerging countries), in any economic sector and in any currency. However, depending on market conditions, the
investments or exposure may be focused on one country or on a limited number of countries and/or one economic activity
sector and/or one currency and/or in asingle asset class. The Selected Fund diversifies investment in undervalued stocks
(long positions) and overvalued stocks (short positions) with focusing on the mispriced stock prices mainly from awide
range of global stock markets. The Selected Fund carries out stock selection and determines investment al location based on
detailed top-down analysis (macro analysis) and bottom-up fundamental analysis (individual stock analysis). The Selected
Fund aims to maximize risk-adjusted returns by combining stock selection and active market exposure management in
building a portfolio of the Selected Fund. The Selected Fund also aims to achieve a stable return whilst minimizing the
impact of equity markets by changing long/short investment allocations actively on a region, country or industry basis.

As of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023 the Selected Fund®s net asset value were EUR2,108,270,000 ($2,280,726,486) and
EUR2,729,431,730 ($2,964,981,688), respectively.

The Selected Fund held investments comprising of equity securities (common stocks and units of investment funds), futures
contacts, forwards contracts and options contracts.

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would expect to
receive if itwere to liquidate or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund®s liquidity or redemption
restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trust"s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series Trust
has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective
fund agreements.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward foreign currency contracts which are contractual
obligations to receive or deliver a fixed quantity of foreign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date.

These contracts are valued dai ly based on the difference between the forward foreign exchange rates at the dates of entry
into the contracts and the forward rate at the measurement date.

As of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

7. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023

Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss consist of
the following:

Net realized gain on investments in the Selected Fund $ 907,226 $ 84,321
Total net realized gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or $

907,226 $ 84,321
loss
Movement in net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on investments in
the Selected Fund $ 5,211,681 $ (2,945,452)
Total net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on financial assets $ 5,211,681 $ (2,945,452)

at fair value through profit or loss

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the next US$500
million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The fees
earned by the Administrator during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to
the Administrator as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assets Value. The fees earned by the Custodian during the years ended
January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of January 31, 2024 and January 31,
2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.50% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in arrears. The Distribution Fees
are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the
Distributor during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor
as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the assets of
the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023,
and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent
Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees
payable to the Trustee as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees™) accrued on and calculated
as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023,
and outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and Trustee Fees
(the "Ordinary Costs").

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit fees,
formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, agent member company fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses,
annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies, any insurance costs, any
costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 37 and other similar offering documents and the costs relating to
the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal
of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring,
expenses related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses
that would not usual ly occur.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for any

outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining fol lowing payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the Fee Agent as
its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.
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The Operational Costs Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day count fraction basis and are payable quarterly in arrears in
the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial closing day, and for all other
accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable monthly in
arrears. The fees earned by the Manager during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees
payable to the Manager as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in
arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behal f of the Manager out of the assets of the
Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Investment Manager

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears. The fees earned
by the Investment Manager during the years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the
Investment Manager as of January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the
years ended January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2023, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Following a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now incorporated under the name
of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111. The Master Trust Deed was revised through a Deed of Amendment on March 1, 2024.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through May 28, 2024, the date on which these financial

statements were available to be issued. Effective February 1, 2024 through May 28, 2024, there were subscriptions of
$63,589 and repurchases of $8,043,607. There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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TR
2023 12 31

589,579,854.70 100,098.87

26,079,830.69 4,427.83

615,659,685.39 104,526.70

2,194,770.64 372.63

443,765,140.69 75,342.45

1,065,681,449.81 180,931.40

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

2,397.74 0.41

930,055.87 157.90

0.00 0.00

27,741,978.02 4,710.03

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

5,555.86 0.94

2,155,981,034.02 366,042.46

208,756.11 35.44

2,208,741.93 375.00

0.00 0.00

211,671.17 35.94

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

2,846,232.21 483.23

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

684,615.27 116.23

0.00 0.00

6,160,016.69 1,045.85

2023 12 31 2,149,821,017.33 364,996.61

2022 12 31 2,811,213,480.57 477,287.82

2021 12 31 3,246,177,191.41 551,135.96
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TR

2023 12 31

2,811,213,480.57 477,287.82
16,613,596.49 2,820.66
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

308.85 0.05
45,623,274.15 7,745.92
3,430.62 0.58
62,240,610.11 10,567.21
29,060,760.14 4,933.94
0.00 0.00
931,372.38 158.13
770,672.97 130.84
6,319,810.11 1,072.98
926,427.58 157.29
6,379,500.20 1,083.11
0.00 0.00
9,776,751.54 1,659.90
0.00 0.00
54,165,294.92 9,196.18
8,075,315.19 1,371.03
81,521,036.22 13,840.64
-3,377,982.47 -573.51
-701,784.62 -119.15
-38,506,904.36 -6,537.70
-50,069,624.25 -8,500.82
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

-0.83 0.00
-3,059,945.12 -519.52
30,037,271.38 5,099.73
-620,170.87 -105.29
-19,149,167.66 -3,251.15
28,451,714.18 4,830.53
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
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TR
2023 12 31

1.
CANADIAN PACIFIC KANSAS CITY usD 167,968.00 12,021,500.10 0.56
12,021,500.10 0.56
TENCENT HOLDINGS HKD 269,600.00 9,176,542.33 0.43
9,176,542.33 0.43
SAFRAN EUR 188,902.00 30,122,312.92 1.40
30,122,312.92 1.40
NATL BANK GREECE EUR 921,365.00 5,795,385.85 0.27
5,795,385.85 0.27
CRH usb 264,184.00 16,540,049.28 0.77
16,540,049.28 0.77
ASAHI GROUP HOLDINGS JPY 277,600.00 9,372,552.03 0.44
9,372,552.03 0.44
COCA-COLA EUROPEAN PARTNERS usD 273,210.00 16,506,617.84 0.77
16,506,617.84 0.77
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ALPHABET "A" uSsD 490,868.00 62,073,372.49 2.88
AMAZON . COM usb 315,000.00 43,326,936.13 2.01
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY "B* usb 43,688.00 14,105,609.99 0.66
COSTCO WHOLESALE usD 8,885.00 5,309,202.73 0.25
FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES uSsD 17,422.00 4,457,186.82 0.21
INGERSOLL RAND usD 129,402.00 9,059,838.57 0.42
INTERACTIVE BROKERS GROUP -A- usb 73,835.00 5,541,050.56 0.26
MASTERCARD "A* usb 27,915.00 10,778,098.63 0.50
MCDONALD*S usD 27,360.00 7,343,967.41 0.34
MICRON TECHNOLOGY usD 204,713.00 15,815,151.79 0.74
MICROSOFT usb 122,958.00 41,856,811.04 1.94
NEWMONT CORP usD 132,776.00 4,974,968.22 0.23
PARKER HANNIFIN usD 59,623.00 24,866,080.75 1.16
SUMMIT MATERIALS INC "A*® usb 182,844.00 6,365,980.39 0.30
UNION PACIFIC usb 50,705.00 11,274,305.98 0.52
VISA "A" uSsD 91,001.00 21,447,617.21 1.00
WALT DISNEY uSsD 286,580.00 23,423,987.87 1.09
WASTE MANAGEMENT usb 37,001.00 5,999,075.82 0.28
ZOETIS "A*" usb 58,712.00 10,490,189.15 0.49
328,509,431.55 15.28
l. 428,044,391.90 19.92
Il.
EUR Z EUR 1,308,522.44 187,615,293.49 8.72
187,615,293.49 8.72
Il. 187,615,293.49 8.72

615,659,685.39 28.64

443,765,140.69 20.64
1,065,681,449.81 49.57

24,714,741 .44 1.15
2,149,821,017.33 100.00
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TR
2023 12 31

15.28 8.72

8.72
1.40 IT 3.31
0.77 2.68
0.77 2.34
0.56 2.26
0.44 1.40
0.43 1.16
0.27 1.09
28.64 1.08
1.07
0.98
0.77
0.49
0.44
0.34
0.28
0.23
28.64
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2024
79,915,513 12,525,957,508
364,560 57,141,134
79,550,953 12,468,816,373
730,054
108.97 17,080
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2024 735,000 11,520

10
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2024

1,773,353,161

10,263,464

14 87,270,003

64,719,256,094

1,709,225,544

19 151,670,151,029
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2022 2022 12 31 2023
2023 12 31
22
38 59 328

23 103

2024 31
156.74
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2023 12 31

2023 2022
usD usD

60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
4 60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
5 185,000 28,997 205,000 32,132
(25) ) 58 9
245,009 38,403 219,454 34,397
6 (115,081) (18,038) (112,703) (17,665)
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732

129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usD usD
9 2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
10 185,864 29,132 205,864 32,267
2,434,883 381,644 2,189,897 343,244
10 451,584 70,781 336,526 52,747
451,584 70,781 336,526 52,747
11 735,000 115,204 735,000 115,204
1,248,299 195,658 1,118,371 175,293
1,983,299 310,862 1,853,371 290,497
2,434,883 381,644 2,189,897 343,244

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usD usb usD
2023
11 735,000 115,204 1,118,371 175,293 1,853,371 290,497
129,928 20,365 129,928 20,365
12 31 735,000 115,204 1,248,299 195,658 1,983,299 310,862
2022
11 735,000 115,204 1,011,620 158,561 1,746,620 273,765
106,751 16,732 106,751 16,732

12 31 735,000 115,204 1,118,371 175,293 1,853,371 290,497
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

) usD
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
4 (60,034) (9,410) (14,396) (2,256)
69,894 10,955 92,355 14,476
20,000 3,135 4,999 784
20,000 3,135 4,999 784
115,058 18,034 112,595 17,648
115,058 18,034 112,595 17,648
4 60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
264,986 41,534 224,345 35,164
264,986 41,534 224,345 35,164
9 1,984,033 310,977 1,759,688 275,813
2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
9 2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977

2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
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c/o Maples Corporate Services
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37

2023 12
2024 31
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2023 2022
60,034 14,396
60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022

(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2022 12 31

12

150/204

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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Les .I.v!,xﬂagunm (Cayroan) Limded

Franog! Siatements Tor the year ended 51 December 2058

Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rafareace

UsD b MNale

2023 2022

interestincome
- fram financial instruments measwved at amorhised
cos!

14398

14,395

60,034

'_l'at.al interest incomea

60,024 14,356

"Hérvice fee income
Cther (osses)/fevenues

185,000

(=5)

2000

Total revenuas

245,009 219,454

‘General, adm nistrative and ofher operaling expenses

&

U5, 081) T (112,709)

Operating profit before allowance and taxation

128,828 106,751

Prefit before tax

108,751

----------------------------------------------------- e e LT L LT T

T

Incoma tax expense

Prafit after tax

129,928 106,751

The accompanying notes fom an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

Feakerer,
= - ME 2023 2022
BSltS et ee et r et ettt s n e e
Cash and due from banks i i e SR MENG  1,008 030
‘Chrar aseats 10 186 B84 25 BEL
Total assets 2,434,883 2,188,857
Other Fabilties 10 451,584 335,508
Total liabilities 451,584 336,526
Sharaholders'equily _ ........cccoimeninrmn =
e —— i1 7a5000 785,000
"Retained earnings 1,248,299 1,118371
Total shareholders' equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity 2,434,883 2,188,897

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors an 14 June 2024

u'nc.\zup "'Liﬂ
¥

Diact

Diractor l'

B o T e

The accomparnying notes form an integral part of these financial stadements,
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retained Tokal

usD aamings
202‘B|. Larssssmsa ssama sy PR ey s sams P

Balance at 1January U 7es000 18371 1883371
Profit for the year - 126,528 126,528
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,299

Baiance af 1 January
Frofil for the yaar

733,000 101,620 1,746,620
— 108,751 106,751

Balance at 31 December

735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rterwnce 2023 2022
Uusp aae
Cash flows from operating activities
Frofic before tax for ihe period 199,928 108,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
_generated from operating activities
Hon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments;
Interest Income 4 (B0 034) (14,396
f}ashgnﬁmatcdﬁmupemuﬁg.a::hmﬁhﬁnm ................................................ A
changes in operaling assets and liabilities 69,894 92,355
Net decrasse in operaling 8ssels: . .....eeeiesmesasssnse
(Other assets 20000 4,989
Net decrease in operating assets 20,000 4,895
Nl s N O e i teemimamensassamsasnade sen s st aaan
Other liabliies 115,058 112,535
MNetincrease in operating abilities: . 115058 112,595
Intarast income racaied 4 60034 14,3396
Net cash generated from operating activily 264,986 224,345
Net increase in cash and cash eqguivalents 264,988 224,345
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaing of year 9 1,984,033 1,769,688
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2.249.019 1,984,033
Cash and dus from banks L] 2,249,019 1,884,033
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,033

The accempanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalemants.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
1. Principal activities

UBS Management {Cayman) Limited (the ‘Company’) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
Emited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts. The Company's registered office is ofo Maples Corporate Servicas
Limited, PO, Box 309, Ugland Heuss, Grand Caymen KY 11104, Cayman Istands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by operation of
Swiss law to all assets and llabifties of Credt Suisse Group AG, and became the direct or indirect
sharehclder of all of the former direct and Indirect subsidiaries of Credit Suisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upan the completion of the Transaction, sach outstanding, registered Credit Suisse share corverted
to the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse depository in the
case of Credit Suisse American dapository shares (ADS), the memsr consideration consisting of
172248 UBS Group AG sharas. In aggregate, Credit Sulsse sharsholders racatved 51% of the
outstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition date, with a purchase price of LSD 3.7 billien

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Direclors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Cradit Suisee AG, ard both entifies entersd inte a definitive merger agreement. The mesger is
compieted on 37 May 2024,

2.  Material Accounting Policies
(a} Statement of compliance

Thase firancial statements have bean prepased in accordance with !l applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which colective term indudes all applicable indiwidusal Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards, Intermatienal Accounting Standards (lASs") and Interpretations issued by Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASBE™. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Company Is set out below,

(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
The masasurement basis usad in the praparafion of the financial stataments is the historical cost basis.

The praparaticn of financial sistaments in conformity with IFRS bccounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, Babiities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumplions are based on historcal experience and various other faciors that are bellaved to be
raeasonatle undsr the circumstancas, the results of which form the basis of making ihe judgements
about carmying values of assets and fabilies that are nol readily apparent from other scurces, Adtual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to acceunting
estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revisad 1 the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the perdod of the revisicn and fiture pereds if the revision affects beth cument and future
pericds,
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2, Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has applied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporting paricd
commencing | January 2023

- Cefinition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments 1o 145 B
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments (isied above did net hava any impact en the amounts recognsed in prior pariods
and ara net expected o significantly affect the cument er future periods.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and en hand with banks, and short-term, highly
Fguid investments that are readily corvertble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having bean within three menths of maturiy at acguisition,

(d} Fareign currency

The Cempany's functienal and presentation cuwency is United States Dollars ("USDY. Foreign
currency fransactions during the year are translated into USD at the forelgn exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, Maonetary assets and labiltiss denominated in forelgn curencies are translated
inte LUSD at the foreign excherge rates ruling at the end of the reparting peried. Exchanae gains and
losses are recognised in the profil or loss,

Men-monetary assets and izbllities that are measured In terms of historical cost in a forsign eurraney
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. MNon-
monetary assets and fiabiftes denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far value are
translatad using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dabes the fair value was determined, Foreign
currancy differences arising on relrarslation are recognised in profit or loss.

(e} Other assets

Other asscts are inialy recognised at far vaue and thersafter stated at amoriised cost less
Expected Credit Loss {'ECL") {refer to Note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-free
lzans made to related parties without any fixed repayment tarms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, In such cases, the recelvables are stalad at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful
dabts.

{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recegrised for labilties of uncartain timing ar amount when the Company has a lagal
or constructive chligation arising as a result of & past event, it is probable that 2n sutflow of economic
banefis will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. VWhere the tme
value ef menay is matarial, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
seitle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an cutflow of ecanomic banefits will be required, or the amount cannot

be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabikty, unless the probabiity of
cuiflow of economic benefils is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will enly be confirmed
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the occurrence or non-sccurmence of one or more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent
lighilitias unlass the probakilty of cutiiow of ecenomiz banefits is remaote.

(g} Impairment

The camying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether thers is any objective evidencs of impairment. f any such objectve evidence
enists, the assel's recoverabls amount is estmated at fhe end of sach reporting persicd. An
impaiment loss is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset excesds its recoverable
amourt., Impairment losses are recegnisad in the proft or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impamant reguirements apoly primarily to financal assets measured at amertised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on & forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorparating reascnable and supperlable forecasts of future economic conditions avalable at the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgsment over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on & probability-weighted basis.

(h) Revenue recognition

Frowvided that it s prebable that the eccnomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if appficable, can be measured reliably, service fee income is recognised in proft or loss when
the investment managameant sarvica is provided,

(i) Expenses
All expensaes are recegnisad in prefitand less on an accusl basis.
(i) Related parties

Far the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered 1o be related to the Company if:
{a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that persom;
(0 has control or joint contral over the Company; i
(il has significant influense over the Company, or
(il is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Coempany or the Company's
parent

(6}  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following cenditions applies:

(i}  The enltity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that sach
pasent, subsidlary and felow subsidiary is related to the othars),

(i) One entity is an assoclate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of & member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member).

(i) Both entitiss are joint ventures of the same third party.

() One entity is a joint venture of a third party and lhe other enfity is an associale of tha
third party.

() The enlity is 2 post-employment benafit plan for the benefit of employess of either the
Comparyy of an entity ralated to the Company.

(v} The entity is contrelled or jointly contrelled by a person identified in (2],

(vil) A person identfied in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
wey management parscnrel of the entily (or of a parant of ke entity).
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2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(i) Related parties (continued)

Close members of lhe family of a person are those family members who may be expscied to
influence, ar be influsnced by, fhat parsen in their deelings with the entity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued & number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards thet are first effective
for the cument scceunting pericd of the Company, The adoption of these amendments had no
rraterial impast to the Company's fnansal pesition, resu't of operelions or cash flows,

The Company has not applisd any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting peried (Note 15).

4,  Total Interest Income

usp 2023 2022
Total interest income

Interest income on cash and duefrom banks 60,034 14396
Total interest income 60,084 14,396

Al the above interast income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost.
6. Service Fee Income

The prncipal acthvities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the adminisbration and
management of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income carned from fellw subsidiary as falows:

usp 2023 2022
Total service fee income

e ‘“‘_‘_13570133233.&"33
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usD 2023 2022
[General administrative and other operaling expenses =~ e
L e e e “8) &9
Audforromuneration e 18380) (B8
Directors' ramuneration CTTETTTTTU08,848) (106,175)
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {115,081) (112.708)

All of tha above expsnditures are paysble lo the Company's immedate holding company and the
immediate holding company setties such expendiiures on behalf of the Company
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7. Taxation

Thare are no taxes on income of gains in the Cayman [slands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Geverner in Council of the Cayman Islands sxempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2039, Accardingly, no provision for Income taxes is includad
in these finarcial statements,

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsorad wiconsalidated sinuciurad antiliss

The Company conziders tself the sponsor of a strustured entihy when aither its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there Is a general expectaticn from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company was mvolved in the
dasign or sel up of the stuctured entily and has a form of involvement with the structured entity.

Tha balow unconsolidated structured anbitias are sponsored by the Company where a fieed annual

management fee of USD 5000 (2022: USD B,000) is received but no Interest iz hald by the
Cempany as 2t 31 Decembar 2023
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

qubal se}ac*t Gan}r St?ﬁﬂg:r Fund

Austraien High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (Fer Qualified 'nsﬁﬁgtnn alivestors Onby)
{US REIT Premium Fund (For Gualified Institutional lnvestars Ork) "~ """ """ """
Japan Equty Premium Strategy Fund
Frincipal / C5 Canadian Equity Irg_n-nmu_ﬁqqd {Fur Uua.lrlmd Inslr.lhonal In-ue_s!_ug_s_DnI!ﬁ
‘&_"::IP_’qal REIT Trfpla F"r-ammm Fund [‘or Guaiﬁed lnsh"h.ltmal Im'estars e

US High Div Equily Premium Fund (For Qualfied insttutional Investors Dnl‘g]'
US Small Cap Eq J Premi ur" Fund I[FcrOuulrﬁad Irtstrlutlunal Iwestu 5 Onk}

Darwa Emergmg L.ncal Market Bond Fund (For Qualfied instituticnal Irvestors Oniy)”

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualifisd [nstiutional investors onljF]"""" M

T R R

Jagan Eq'u.ty Ffam-um Fur'd {Fur Gaaifled 'nshb.‘ﬁmal Investors Q-_ily] R
N&IWAM JS R'IT Incumﬂ Fund {Fu' Cusahﬁul:l Insttuhnnal investors Cﬁ'@ﬁ

Daliia UK Figh Divdend Eality Find (For Oualfied instf Ein'iﬁﬁéiéiaﬂﬁiéiﬁiiiﬁiﬁiﬁ.’iZfZZIIZZZZIfZ
Daiwa WL Ventures I, L.P. Fund

'Efazﬁ Eur_urt}r nn"la Fund [Fm C‘maliﬁed nshtu!:pn?! Iwes*-:nrs. 'Dn'y} A ——
Dar.'.'a Drai |an Rea_] Bonl:l Fund {Fu-r G valified Ins@m.nunnal Invam Dr@f}
’\hssa.:; -..lapan Eq_ul*}nﬁ.::t[ur_ﬂ Fund {Fnr {'..‘JaJ ed Inslltulmnal In'.restors Gnl‘f,l__“
AMP Australia REIT Fund '[FD.' Gualified institutional Investors D"l!f,ll R

- RE‘I‘ and ?Ba.l Ea-txtﬂ EEUI[}' Fl..nd For ﬂualrﬁﬂd Insttutmna Immm Onlp}

(D)abﬁaﬁ.m&ﬁcaﬂ H|,g’n ‘Dividend Equr*y Quattre Income Fund (Fer Qualfied Institutional Investers
n

D&Ma Ameﬂmn R"'-I" Gun'!tm In::oma Fund {For ﬂua!iﬂad instutiona Investors Dnh{}

Ehni-:ﬂl Woﬂd Wrap Etabla qum (For Q.Jalt" :.:d Insllri'.m'c:ﬁ;;!.ul?ﬁ;;;;r: E)';I}:."m"m e
s h[:lf Iriph I':ng_na F’Tus F\.Hd'{l'zb} Gua“fﬂ_ll_'mmuhunnl [mestc:s G"I}'}.m....““.....m.._.....,
LS Mun’ -dp.al Bond Fund
:raknh'ﬂirm;Cﬁ-.EbndFunc--"-"--
____u_lgg;_lrlj_g'r Ir: ﬂdand Equrll; Fmrnl.lrn Fund L'Fu{ l]uaiflad rxst.tl..tlmd In'-'nsl-:urs Gny} e
Medstar's Fnﬂaﬂilm

"BSMD Global Advantage

PIMCO Short Term income Strafegy Fund ™
PIMCO Shnrt Tmm | Strategy

D_'a.hva JREIT !.‘.:;-'.remd Ea.l Fund {Fu.f {]uaﬁflea mhtuhr.:nal In'.rastorx- Dn-lfri"“""“ T

Foreign Dercminatad | Man AH' “Ernart | E_ﬂw.ramga fitmiagy Fund

SR A A e T VORI TR o i R
‘“‘UDE“"“T”'“BWF”""’

i Agha
USDyrathmﬂhEund R LT

Presmium Carry St-fatag",y Fund
* The funids were terminated during 2023,

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsolidated structured antities that it
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not curently have the intention to provide financlal or other suppot to
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not confractually required to provide.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks 2,249,018 1,984,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,083
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
UsD 2023 2022
Other assels
Interest and fees recelvabla 185 864 205 864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
uso 2023 2022
Cther liabilities
Interest and fees payable 451,684 236 b2
Total other llabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital
{a) Authorised and issued share capital
2023 2022

Ha. of UsD Mo. of usp

shares shares
Authorised:
Crdinary sharas of USD 1 each 1,000000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000
Issued and fully paid up: _ _ _
Crddinary shares T35,000 735,000 735,000 T35,000

The holders of ardinary shares are enlitled to recawe dividends as dedlared from time to {ime and are
entitlad to cna vote per share at general mestings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's residual assets
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11. Share Capital {continued)
(b} Capital management

The Company's primary cbjactives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abiliy to
continue as & going concem so thet it can contnue o previde returns te shareholders, by pricng
sarvices commensurately with the level of sk and by securing access o finance at a resscnable
cost, As tha Cempany is part of a farger greup, the Company's sources of addiional capital and
policies for disinbution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines "capital® as including all components of equity.

The Cempany's eapital structure is reqularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capitel
menagement praclices of the group o which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in Gght of changes in economic condiions affecting the Company or the group, to
tha extant that these do not condlict with the directors’ fiduclary dutias towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed cagital requirennents in the current period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, Bquidity, nterest rate ard foreign currency risks anises in the normal course of the
Company s busness. These risks ars managed by the Company's fnancial management policias and
practices described below,

(a) Credit risk

The Campary's credit risk is primarily atirbulabla to amounts due frem group companies and cash at
bani. Cradit risk is defined as risk that one party to a inandal instrument will cause a financlal kass to
another party by failing to discharge an obligaticn. Management regulary maontors its risk expasure to
ensure that its credit rsk is kept to a minimal level. The madimum exposure to credit sk is
represantad by the camying amount of sach financial asset in the statement of financal pesition after
deducting any impairment sllowance.

{b) Liguidity risk

The Company's palicy Is to regularly menitor its Bouidiby requirements to satisfy ts contractual and
reasonatly foreseeable abligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial liabilties, which incledes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be seitled between three to twelve
maonths,

(c) Interest rate risk

The Company s exposed 1o Interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest cn cash
and depestis. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on tha carrying value of the recognised assets or liabiities of the Company.

16
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(d) Foraign currency risk

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)

The Company is expoesed to foreign currency risk primarly through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are dencminated in Hong Keng dollars (HKD). As the HKD Is pegged to the USD,
the Company considers that the risk of movemants in exchange rates betwsen USE and HED to be

Insignificant.

{e) Fair values

The camying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different fiom their fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

'n addtion to the transactions and balances disclosed elsowhers in the fnandal stataments, tha
Company entered into the fellowing material related party transactions.

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Parent Fellow Total Parant Fellow Tedal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companes
Assats
Other asses - 185,684 185,664 205,854 205,654
Total assets = 185,864 185,864 =. 205,854 205,864
Liabilides and
Equity
DOher fanlities 081884 LmaoJdoloes | Qaesms L SEREs
_Sl-.am canite 735,000 - F35,000 735,000 —_ 725,000
Total liabilities and
sharaholders’
equity 1,186,584 — 1,186,584 1,071,526 — 1,071,626
16
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13.  Material Related Parly Transactions (continued)

{b} Related party revenues and expenses

31 Dacember 2023 31 Decembar 2022
Parant Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
usn Companias Companias
Revenues
Service fee Icome. e JER000 ABB000 i 205000 205,000
Total revenues — 185,000 186,000 - 205,000 206,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key rmanagement personnel (USD) 2023 2022
Director's Fee 106,843 106,175
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 108,843 106,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 Decamber 2023, the immediate parent of lhe Company is Cradit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which 15 Incorperated in Hong Kong and tha ulimate controling party of the Campany is UBS Group
AG, which is incorperated In Switrerdand, UBS Greup AG produces financial statements available fer
public use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet affective for tha year ended 31 December 2023

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interprelations have
baen published that are not mandatery for 21 Cecember 2023 reperting perisds and have not been
early adopted by the Company, Thasa standards, amandments or interpratations are rot expactad o
have a material impact on the ently in the curent or future reporting periods and on foresceable
future transactions.

16. Subseguent Events

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of USS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and beth enfities entered into a definitive merger agreement. The merger is
camplatad an 31 May D024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Manzgement {Cayman) Limited has been
changed to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

Tha {inandal statements were approved for iBzue by the beard of directors of the Company on 14
June 2024,
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Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Insight Alpha (the "Series Trust™), a series
trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman)
111) (the "Trust™) which comprise the statement of financial position as at January 31,
2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at January 31, 2024, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS
Accounting Standards™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors”
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code'™) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series
Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial
reporting process.

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform, audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust®s internal control.
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Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors”™ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors® report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

May 28, 2024
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Company””), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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